PRELIMINARY MINUTES

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING
&
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
March 3, 2025 and March 4, 2025

The legal voters of the Town of Ludlow, County of Windsor, State of Vermont, are hereby notified and
warned to meet at the Heald Auditorium in the Ludlow Town Hall at 37 Depot Street, Ludlow, Vermont
on Monday, March 3, 2025 at seven o’clock PM (7:00 PM), for a Public Informational Meeting followed
by the Annual Meeting, and on Tuesday, the fourth day of March, 2025, between the hours of ten o’clock

AM, (10:00 AM) in the forenoon and seven o’clock, PM, (7:00 PM) in the afternoon to act on the
following articles.

The legal voters of the Town of Ludlow are further notified that voter qualifications, registration and
absentee voting relative to said Town Meeting shall be provided in Chapters 43, 51 and 55 of Title 17,
Vermont Statutes Annotated. You must be registered to vote in the Town of Ludlow in order to vote at
Town Meeting. Voters are encouraged to request an Early/Absentee Ballot from the Town Clerk’s Office
by calling (802) 228-2828 or email to treasurer@Iludlow.vt.us.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Brett Sanderson, Chairman

Scott Baitz

STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara

OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden

Dean Alexander
Patricia Archambault
George Benson Jr.
Kaitlyn Benson
Mary Benson

Jeffrey Billings
Ronald Bixby
Sharon Bixby

Gary Blodgett

James Briggs

Daniel Buckley
Suzanne Buckley
Alan Couch

Jamie Dickey-Wilson
Marissa Foote
Robert Fortuna
Terry Fortuna
Charlotte Galley
Peter Girouard

Justin Hyjek

Noah Schmidt

Ulla Cook

Lisha Klaiber
Peter Kolenda
Elizabeth Krefski
Lou Grefski
David Ladd

Erin Ladd

Don Lagro
Andrea Lehtonen
Catherine Martin
John Merrow
Haylee Messing
Jay Messing
Steve Meyers
Chris Miele
Sullivan Miele
Meredith Milliken
Layne Millington
Cynthia Mischel
Mary Ann Neal
Julie Nicoll

George Tucker, Jr.

Newton Rose, Moderator

Thomas Ray
James Rumrill
Sheryl Scales
Abigail Schmidt
Bruce Schmidt
Lisa Schmidt
Marissa Selleck
Doug Sheehan
Ryan Silvestri
Ginny Snyder
Kimberly Southworth
Kelly Stetner
Michelle Stinson
Jean Strong

Ron Tarbell

Alice Thayne
Terry Thayne
George Thomson
Linda Thomson
Matthew Thomson



TOWN OF LUDLOW
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

March 3, 2025

Andrea Goldman
Kathleen Grant
Loran Greenslet
Terry Carter
Jarrod Harper
Jennifer Harper
William Huber
Lorraine Hughes
Jarrod Jowdy
Heather Kelly
Francis Kissell

CALL TO ORDER

Logan Nicoll
Alice Nitka
Pam O’Neil
Colleen Palmer
Rhinard Parry
Melissa Phipps
Cynthia Plimpton
Peter Pollender
Paula Pollender
Judith Pullenin
Patrick Pullenin

Elin Tucker
Marcelle Tucker
Phoebe Tucker
William Tucker
Sheree Tucker-Vaughn
Jeff Warfle
Kyrik Weidman
Vincent West
Ben Whalen
Andrea Whitman
Terry McNamara

A. Newton Rose called the Informational meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. He said that we will
adhere to Roberts Rules of Order and is modeled by State statute. He said this meeting is to
discuss and vote on the articles. He advised that Articles 1 through 5 will be voted on by
Australian ballot tomorrow. We will discuss them tonight, but no action will be taken on them.
He said that we will vote on Articles 6 through Article 12 tonight.

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 1 — To Elect Town Officers for the coming year

A. Newton Rose said that that voting for this article will be by Australian ballot tomorrow at
Town Hall. There was no discussion

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 2 - SHALL the voters of the Town of Ludlow authorize the

Select Board to finance the purchase of 2 new (replacement of the Engine and Ladder Truck) with

a municipal bond in the amount of $3,623,000.00 for a term not to exceed 20 years?

A. Presentation by Fire Chief Ben Whalen

Ben Whalen advised that in FY2024, the Fire Department responded to 250 calls, so far in
FY 2025, 221 calls. He calculates that by June 30, 2025, they will have responded to 330

calls. Over the past 5 years, they have averaged between 220 and 250 calls. This does not
include flood-related calls. Chief Whalen said they will need to replace 2 fire trucks.

Vehicles proposed for Replacement

Engine #3 - 2004 Pumper
Should have been replaced in 2024. If ordered now, it would not arrive until 2027 - 2028. He
said this vehicle is 21 years old and a continuous maintenance issue and also life safety issue.
The pump has died during firefighting operations. We do our best to keep it running. This
has to be replaced. We need to protect the public and our firefighters

Tower #1 - 1994

Should have been replaced in 2019. If ordered today, would not arrive until 2028-2029
He said that the department has done an incredible job maintaining this vehicle. It looks



TOWN OF LUDLOW March 3, 2025
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

good and spent 3 to 4 months in the shop this year. It is having many issues

Chief Whalen described the NFPA 1900 and OSHA CFR 1910.56 regulations. Each type of
fire apparatus must have its own chapter for maintenance requirements. There is an annex
with special requirements that are “should” as opposed to “shall.” OSHA CFR 1910 was
adopted in 1980 and the new standards are due out soon. These will be applicable
Nationwide with OSHA requiring a 15- year life span for apparatus.

FUNDING BOND

Engine #3

MSPR $1,487,844

Sale price $1,330,000 Difference from MSRP  $157,844
Tower #1

MSRP $2,609,915

Sale price $2,303,000 Difference from MSRP  $316,195
Total $3,623,000 Difference from MSRP $474,039

Why do we need a Tower - We have 5 buildings of at least 35 feet high and 3 stories; he used
Town Hall as an example. The Town of Ludlow has had an aerial for a very long time. Chief
Whalen advised that he does not live or pay taxes in Ludlow. Why Purchase 2 vehicles in
one year?

If purchased together they will get a better deal. it would be a 6% cost savings and other
incentives, all amounting to about 11.57% cost savings. If we pay upfront, they will give us
5% simple interest per vehicle per day.

Total Bond $3,623,000
PREPAY ° $3,079,550
Prepay interest $543,450

Chief Whalen said that there is expected to be a 4% increase in prices during 2025. If this is
passed and the increase has not taken effect, the price drops $232,000. If the increase takes
effect, that will be added back in.

Capital Equipment Fund

B. Peter Girouard said that for several years, we have been putting $30,000 into a Capital
Equipment fund, where has that money gone. Also, how will this purchase affect our tax rate?

C. Chief Whalen said there is $463,000 in that fund. It would be used to purchase other vehicles,
air packs at $10,000 each, we need to purchase breathing air compressor at about $50,000 and
hydraulics at $10,000 each. We will take the money out of the Capital fund for that. He
recommends not using that fund for these vehicles. We will take a 20-year bond at $220,000
per year.

D. Dean Alexander asked if there is any debt expense on the bond.



TOWN OF LUDLOW March 3, 2025
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

E. Brendan McNamara said the bond interest rate is about 3%.
F. Steve Meyers complimented the Chief on doing a good job.
G.  Chief Whalen said that all of the EMS personnel work together for public safety.

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 3 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow Approve a Local 1%
Options Tax on Meals, Alcohol, Rooms and Sales for the purpose of offsetting the cost of future
Town Capital purchases and Infrastructure Projects?

A. Brendan McNamara said that people have brought this up to him and there have been a few
forums in the last 2 to 3 months. This would be for a 1% local tax on meals, rooms and alcohol.
He said that people do say, “Aren’t we taxed enough?” We can use these funds for Capital
Equipment and Repairs. He said that he has spoken to surrounding towns and it is a positive
solution to upcoming expenses.

He said that current taxes are: They would increase to:
Sales 6% 7%

Meals 9% 10%

Alcohol 10% 11%

He said that the state would retain 30% of the Local 1%. He added that VLCT is trying to get that
reduced to 20%. He said that in FY2023

Sales were $9,998,356.25

30% to State $299,506.88

Balance to Ludlow $698,848.38

He said that the money would not go into the General Fund to be used for specific needs. He said
that one payment on the bond would be $220,000. He said the cost for the Dam repairs will be
$11,000,000 (part Federal and Town). He added that 12 to 13 municipalities are putting this to a
vote tomorrow, including Springfield. He said that in 2022, the average income in Ludlow was
$49,213, taxes were $40,059.38 and the 1% would have been $40.00. This is a way for Ludlow
to generate revenue without affecting the property tax. He said that automobiles, groceries,
medical supplies, OTC medications and prescriptions would be exempt. He said we are looking
at $11,000,000 for the flood control dams, the Fire trucks, Wastewater facility upgrades and
Flood resiliency mitigation projects .

Peter Girouard asked when the State would pay the town

Brendan McNamara said quarterly.

Peter Girouard asked about the $2.5 million for the dams

Brendan McNamara said that was the engineering.

Dean Alexander said that he is in favor, but wants to be sure that each project on which the

money would be spent is voted on by the taxpayers. He wants to make sure the people have the

final say on where the money is or is not spent. It could be used to reduce the tax rate.

G. Brendan McNamara said that the funds are not to be used to offset taxes. They will be used for
major projects and come before this body to be voted on to be used out of the Local Options Tax.
Statute requires this.

H. Dean Alexander asked if the funds are to be bound to capital and infrastructure. Also, is there
any time limit on this and can it be revisited.

TMOUO®



VI.

VII.

TOWN OF LUDLOW March 3, 2025
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

I.  Brendan McNamara said it can always be rescinded. He added that if in 10 to 15 years and there
is still $15,000,000 in the fund, there can be an article made to vote on using the funds elsewhere
to offset taxes. This article would have to be voted on at Town Meeting. It is a destination tax.

J.Jarrod Harper asked if the bond is passed this would offset the $220,000.

K. Chris Miele said this has come up in the past and it could be an “open checkbook.” He said we
need a start and end date - a 5- year plan. He asked what our Grand List is. He said that he
would be more in support if there was a timeline. He added that Commonwealth Avenue is not
done yet.

L. Andrea Goldman said she is overwhelmingly in favor of this. We need to invest in the
infrastructure and this will pay for safety. She has constantly heard “we don’t have the money.”
There are constant needs and meetings.

M. Steve Meyers said that he spends an immense amount at LaValleys and this would affect some
people much more than others

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 4 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow authorize the Select
Board to appoint a Town Clerk as provided in 17 V.S.A. § 2651e?

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 5 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow authorize the Select
Board to appoint a Town Treasurer as provided in 17 V.S.A. § 2651f?

A. Brendan McNamara said that towns usually vote for the Town Clerk and that most towns are not
as fortunate as we are to have someone like Ulla Cook, but at some point she will retire and we
will need to find someone highly qualified to support and help the town.

B. Chris Miele said we like elected officials. He said the Select Board has the mechanism for checks
and balances. If the Select Board appoints someone , that person would report back to the Select
Board, eroding local government. Why are you being so hasty? If an elected person needs help,
we can hire a financial advisor.

Newton Rose opened the Town Meeting and said that for Articles 6 through 12 he will read the article
and there will be a motion to approve and seconded, then there will be discussion on the motion. The
voters will vote to accept or no. He said that once an article has been voted on, you can’t go back to it.
Voting will be by voice, aye or nay. Only those register to vote in the Town of Ludlow may vote. He will
call the vote as he hears it. He said that Brendan McNamara, Ron Tarbell, Ben Whalen and Stephanie
Grover are present to speak on behalf of the Town and Ambulance Service.

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 6 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow fix the salaries of
the Select Board, Cemetery Commissioners and Trustees of Public Funds the same as last year,
Select Board $1,600, Cemetery Commissioners $900, Trustee of Public Funds $4007?

MOTION by Terry Carter and seconded by Don Lagro to approve Article 6.
There was no discussion.

Newton Rose called for a vote. He noted that the ayes have it.

Motion passed Article 6 is adopted.

COw>




TOWN OF LUDLOW March 3, 2025
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

VIII. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 7 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow collect taxes on Real
Property in installments to be paid to the Town Treasurer on August 15, 2025, November 15, 2025,
February 15, 2026, and May 15, 2026, and must be delivered to the Town Treasurer and
postmarked on or before the due date.

A. MOTION by Linda Thomson and seconded by Colleen Palmer to adopt Article 7.
B There was no discussion.

C. Newton Rose called for a vote. He noted that the ayes have it.

D Motion passed Article 7 is adopted.

IX. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 8 — Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow authorize the Select
Board to borrow money to pay the necessary expenses of the Town and any part of its
indebtedness?

A. MOTION by Pam O’Neil and seconded by Sharon Bixby to adopt Article 8 to authorize
the Select Board to borrow money to pay the necessary expenses of the Town and any
part of its indebtedness.

There was no discussion

Newton Rose called for the vote. He noted that the ayes have it.

Article 8 is adopted.

COw

X. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 9 — Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow vote a specific
amount in lieu of a rate on a dollar on the Grand List as set forth in the Select Board’s budget and
the Windsor County budget? Then the Select Board shall set the tax rate necessary to raise this
amount after the Grand List has been completed and lodged in the office of the Town Clerk. The
amount to be raised by taxes will be $4,933,795.40

MOTION by Dan Buckley and seconded by Bruce Schmidt to adopt article 9.

Peter Girouard asked what the increase in taxes is going to be and what was it last year.
Brendan McNamara said this year, 4.6% and last year 6.3%

Peter Girouard asked if the Fire trucks and dams are included in the budget.

Brendan McNamara said no.

Fran Kissell said that they forgot to add $2,500 for the Okemo Valley Technical Rescue. This
is a new 501(3)(c) formed by Stephanie Grover, Peter Kolenda, Mount Holly Fire Department
and Proctorsville Fire Department. The purpose is to raise funds to provide training for
technical and tactical rescue.

Alice Nitka asked about adding this to Article 9

MOTION by Fran Kissell and seconded by Peter Kolenda to add $2,500 to amend the
budget for the Okemo Valley Technical Rescue, new total budget to be $4,936,295.40.

I No further discussion. Amendment passed.

MOTION by Don Lagro and seconded by Terry Carter to approve Article 9 as
amended.

Newton Rose called for a vote on Article 9 as amended. Ayes have it.

Avrticle 9 approved as amended.

mTmooOw>»

I

[

rx




XI.

XII.

XIII.

TOWN OF LUDLOW March 3, 2025
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

REVIEW AND DISCUSS ARTICLE 10 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow authorize the

Select Board to maintain a Capital Fund to support the following vehicle and equipment

purchases, building maintenance and repairs and to fund programs?

Highway Equipment Fund $30,000
Fire Equipment Fund $30,000
Police Equipment Fund $5,000,
Recreation Facilities Fund $10,000,
Ludlow Town Hall Facilities Fund $10,000,
Ludlow Community Center Facilities Fund $5,000,
Black River Senior Center Facilities Fund $2,5007?
Black River High School Building Fund $5,000
Dam Spillway Fund $125.000.00

The amount to be raised by taxes will be $222,500.00.

MOTION by Don Lagro and seconded by Terry Carter to adopt Article 10.

Bruce Schmidt asked, with these numbers, what are the plans for the High School building
Justin Hyjeck said there was a 5- year lease agreement with the Expeditionary School which
has expired. At this point, we don’t know and will be forming a committee to explore
possibilities.

D. Pam O’Neil said there are a lot of things going on with Ludlow and Mount Holly. The
governor is talking about school mergers. If a committee is formed, it should include school
board members. The school may have to revert and be used for public education.

Newton Rose called for a vote on Article 10. Ayes have it.

Avrticle 10 is adopted.

oOw>

mm

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 11 — Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow appropriate the
sum of $7,250.00 to The MOOQvers, formerly The Current, to support the public transit bus service
to Ludlow, from Bellows Falls and from Rutland?

A. MOTION by Pam O’Neil and seconded by Suzanne Buckley to adopt Article 11.
B. Newton Rose called for a vote and the ayes have it.
C. Avrticle 11 is adopted.

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 12 — To transact any other business necessary and proper when
met. Voters to discuss whether to consider allowing optional delivery methods of the Annual Town

Report

A. MOTION by Bruce Schmidt and seconded by Ginny Snyder to adopt Article 12.

B Brendan McNamara thanked the Commissioners, Select Board and all staff for the work they
do for this town. He would like to add Kevin MacPherson for the great job he does with the
upkeep of this facility. He then thanked Police Chief Jeff Billings for his 37 years as Police
Chief.

C. There was a standing ovation for Chief Billings.

D. Peter Girouard suggested that next year, the town work on the crosswalks and turning lanes to
make them more visible.



XIV.

TOWN OF LUDLOW March 3, 2025
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

E. Bruce Schmidt commented on the consideration to change delivery of the town report. He
does not want to see it changed but to continue to mail it. He encourages the Select Board to
continue to mail the town report.

F. Ginny Snyder suggested they limit it to one per household.

G. Ulla Cook said she is trying to clean this up

H. Dean Alexander asked that future meetings be started with the Pledge of Allegiance

I Steve Meyers said he would like to see the town engage younger people in Town Meeting and
improve the way we get the information out.

J. Kelly Stetner said she has flyers available for BRAT “Culvert Crawlers.” This is a program to

get students involved in maintaining our culverts.
K. Peter Girouard said we are voting tomorrow on a $10,000,000 School Budget for 2 schools.
He said there is no mention of Act 60 and it needs more clarity.

ADJOURN
A. MOTION by Peter Girouard and seconded by Don Lagro to adjourn.

B. No further discussion.
C. Motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 8:17 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber
Bruce Sanderson, Chairman Noah Schmidt
Scott Baitz George Tucker, Jr.

Justin Hyjek

Ulla Cook, Town Clerk Jean Strong, BCA Chair

Newton Rose, Town Moderator



